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Corporate statement i

London Security plc is a leader

iIn Europe’s fire security industry.
Each year we provide fire protection
for over 170,000 customers through
our local presence in the United
Kingdom, Belgium, Holland

and Austria.

Qur services and products are commercialised
through the well and long established brands

of Nu-Swift, Ansul, Total, Premier and Master The unique
styling of our products makes them immediately recognisable
to both the industry and customers alike

We aim to achieve the highest levels of service
and product qualty through continuing training of
our employees to the most stnngent servicing standards
and the development of the highest performance rated
fire products These activities are performed whilst
considering the preservation of the environment

From the largest blue chip compantes to governments
and private ndividuals, our customers know that
our name stands for integrity of service by the
best trained and qualified indvduals with quality products
that have achieved the highest performance ratings
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Chairman’s statement

&6 Acquisitions are being sought throughout Europe
and the Group will invest where an adequate

return is envisaged 39

Financial ughhights

Financiat ighlights of the audited results for the
year ended 31 December 2011 compared with
the year ended 31 December 2010 are as follows

« ravenus of £96 3 million (2010 £85 5 million},

« operating profit before depreciation
and amortisation of £24 5 million
(2010 £22 7 milion),

« aperating profit of £20 8 million
(2010 £19 3 milhon), and

+ profit after ncome tax of £14 1 mithion
{2010 €13 1 milhon}

Trading review

The financia! fughlights tllustrate that the Group's revenue
mncreased by £10 8 milhon (12 6%) to £96 3 milion
and operating profit increased by £1 5 milkon (7 8%) to
£20 8 millon However, these results partially reflect the
movement in the Sterling to Furo average exchange rate
which has decreased from 116101 15 Ifthe 2011 results
had been translated at 2010 rates, revenue would have
been £95 6 miflion instead of £36 3 mithon (increase of
11 8%) On the same basis operating profit would have
been £20 6 million instead of £20 8 milion {increase

of 6 7%) This performance is very satisfactory in this
difficult trading environment

Ongoing cost control, cash and working capital
management have continued to be priorities for

the Group The Group has continued to focus on

its stock levels and capital expenditure Cost control
has been achieved without any adverse impact on
the operational structure of the business

A maore detailled review of this year's performance 1s
given in the Operational Review and Financial Review

Acquisitions
We have continued to acquire further contracts to senice
fire equipment through smaller acquisitions

It remains a principal aim of the Group to grow
through acquisition Acguisitions are being sought
throughout Europe and the Group will invest at the
upper end of the price spectrum where an adequate
return 1s envisaged by the Board

Management and staff

2011 was a year in which the staff performed well
and, on your behalf, | would like to express thanks
and appreciation for their contribution

Financing

The Group has benefited from the low level of interest
rates and has repaid a further £7 3 mithon of bormowings
These two factors have resulted in a reduction in net
interest costs of £0 2 mithon Finance costs also move
due to pensions and financial Instruments although they
broadly offset each other

Dividends
An intenm dmidend in respect of 2011 of £0 24 per
ordinary share was paid to sharehclders on 24 June 2011

The Board i1s not recommending the payment of a
finat dwidend In respect of 2011

Dividend policy continues to be reviewed regularly
by the Board

Share buy-back programme

As previously announced, the Board continues to
believe that shareholder value will be optimised by
the purchase by the Company, when appropnate,
of its own shares

www londonsecunty org
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Durnng the penod under review a total of 39,187
ordinary shares were purchased for cancellation
for a total consideration of £573,974

The Directars confirm that they intend to actively
continue to pursue this policy and any shareholder
who 1S considenng taking advantage of the share
buy-back programme 1s invited to contact their
stockbraoker, bank manager, sohaitor, accountant or
other independent financial adwiser authonsed under
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, in order
to contact N+1 Brewin LLP who are operating the
buy-back programme on behalf of the Company

Future prospects

Economic growth in the Group’s market has

been depressed 1n 2011 resulting from the 1ssues
surrounding European sovereign debt and the
consequent austenty measures However, the Group
does not operate in the most troubled of the penpheral
Eurazone economies 2011 was a strong year for the
Group and although 2012 will be challenging the effect
of past and potental acquisitions and our mulli-service
offering means we are In a strong position The Board
Is optimistic for further success in 2012

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 10 Bruton
Street, 5th Floor, London W1J 6PX on 13 June 2012 at
11 am You will find enclosed a form of proxy for use
at that Meeting which you are requested to complete
and return i accordance with the instructions on the
form 1 shall, along with your Diectors, look forward
to meeting you at that ime

JG MURRAY
Charman

2May 2012
a5 oAl

Financial highlights:

Revenue

£96.3 million

2010 €85 5 mition

EBITDA*

£24.5 million

2010 £22 7 milion

Operating profit

£20.8 million

2010 €19 3 mition

* Earnings before interest taxation depreciaton amorisation
and imparment charges
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Financial review

&k Cash flow from operating activities of £22.9 million

demonstrates the ability of the Group to convert
profitability into positive cash flow.??

Consolidated Income Statement

The Group's revenue increased by £10 8 million

(12 6%) to £96 3 milhon Operating profit increased

by £1 5 milion (7 8%) to £20 8 millon However, these
results partially reflect the movement in the Sterling

to Euro average exchange rate which has decreased
from 1 16tc 1 15 lfthe 2011 results from the European
subsidianes had been translated at 2010 rates, revenue
would have been £95 6 milien instead of £96 3 mithon,
which would represent an increase of 11 8%

On the same basis aperating profit would have been
£20 6 milhon instead of £20 8 million, an increase of
6 7% compared to 2010, reflecting the improved
trading experienced

Net finance costs

Net finance costs have decreased from £0 6 million
to £0 4 million This movement should be considered
in terms of its compaonents

Finance income

Finance income has decreased from £1 1 million

to £0 9 million This 1s mainly due to the gain on the
revaluation of the Group's financial denvatives 1in 2010
of £0 3 milhion not being repeated i 2011

Finance cost

The interest charged has dechned from £1 7 millon to
£1 3 milhon reflecting the repayment of £7 3 miflion of
loans in the year outweighing an increase in the weighted
average interest rate from 1 8% 10 201010 2 0% 1n 2011
This led to a total reduction of £0 1 milion A further
reductian of £0 2 million relates to the decision to write
off the interest cap fees in 2010 There was also a
decrease in interest charged on pension scheme
habilitres of £0 2 million

The tax charge for the year has increased by
£0 8 million in ine with profit before tax The Group's
effective rate of 30% has remaned constant despite
a reduction in ¢corporation tax rates in the UK

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Cash flow from operating actnties of £22 9 million
represents 93% of operating profit before depreciation
and amortisation charges This demonstrates the
abitlity of the Group to convert profitability into positive
cash flow The year end cash and cash equivalents
have increased by £0 8 milhon

Borrowings have decreased from £33 9 milhon
to £26 4 mithon The movement can be analysed
as follows

Opening borrowings £33 9 million
Loans repad £(7 3) milhon
Exchange rate impact £(0 2) milhon
Closing borrowtngs £26 4 milhon

Pension scheme surplus

As set out in the notes to the accounts to the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2011 the UK
pension scheme valuation calculated in accordance
IAS 19 resulted In a surplus of £1 2 millon This asset has
not been recognised in these financial statements as there
15 currently no uncondimonal nght for the Group to recover
the surplus

www londonsecurnty org
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Treasury management and policy

The Board considers foreign currency translation
exposure and interest rates to be the only potential
treasury nsks Treasury policies and guidelines are
authonsed and reviewed by the Board

To fully address the foreign currency translation
exposure the Group initiated a restructuring early in
2010 to match the Group's borrowings of £26 4 million
wtuch are spht between Euro and Sterling according
to the forecast income streams This policy acis as a
natural hedge as the &ffect of an adverse exchange
movement on translabon of foreign currency loans
would be offset by a positive effect of translating
income streams from Europe, and vice versa This
restructuning did not involve a change in the Group's
overall borrowings and existing facilities were not
repaid to facilitate the transaction

Regarding the interest nsk, the Group has entered
into Interest rate agreements fixing LIBOR to 1 04%
and EURIBOR to 1 38% plus a margin of between

0 6% and 1 5% to take advantage of the low market
interest rates prevaling at the ime The agreements
took effect from September 2011 and remain in effect
until the loans are repaid in 2013 These agreements
replace the previous interest rate caps taken out

in 2006 and 2008 These caps Imited the Group's
exposure to EURIBOR to 5 25% and LIBOR to 6 25%

Key perfoermance indicators:

Average revenue per employee

£114,604

2010 £106,342

Operating cash flow™ as a percentage
of operating assets® employed

98.3%

2010 101 2%

Operating profit dvided by interest charge®

16.1

2010 115

Net debt

£3.3 million

2010 £11 6 million

{1) Operatng cash flow befoare defined bensfit seheme contnbutions

{2) Operating assels are net assats employed excluding pension iabilties
loans deferred tax, corporabon tax balances goocdwik and cash

{3) Interest charge 1$ stated excluding any exchange differences

www londonsecunty org
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Financial review continued

&€ Our service levels are recognised as being the best
in the industry, complemented by a diverse base of ‘
operations throughout Europe. 33

Segmental reporting

The Directors have considered the requirements of
IFRS 8 “Operating segments”™ Operating segments
are reported In a manner consistent wath the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker ("CODM") The CODM for the London Securty
Group has been identified as the Board as ulimately
this function i1s responsible for the allocation of resources
and assessing the performance of the Group's business
units The management information on which the CODM
makes its decisions has been reviewed to identify any
reportable segments as defined by IFRS 8 The Directors
have cancluded that there ts a single operating segment
for which financial information 1s regularly reviewed

by the CODM

The Group’s comparies in different European countries
operate under similar economic and political conditions
with no different significant nsks associated with any
particular area and no exchange control nsks The
Group's operations are managed on a Pan-European
basis and there are close operatiaonal relationships
between subsidiary companies In additton the nature

of products, services, production and distribution 1s
consistent across the region Accordingly, the Directors
have concluded that under IFRS 8 the Group operates
in a single geographical and market segment

Key nisks and uncertainties

Increased competitian, the current economic chimate '
and industry changes are regarded as the mamn strategic

nsks These are mihigated by prowding service levels

recognised as being the best in the industry, together

with a diverse base of operations throughout Europe

In addtion, acquisition is important to the Group and a
potental nskis not identfving unsutable acquistions that
fai to meet the investment case and would be disruptive
to integrate into the Group This nsk 1s migated by formal
review by the Investment Committes pror to an offer
beaing made Following acquisition the integration
team implements the integration plan and monrors
performance agamst that plan

The Directors have considered the inherent uncertainties
which surround the European sovereign debt and banking
crisis However, the Group has no trading exposure to
those penpheral Eurozone economies which are facing
the greatest challenges In addition the Group's deposits
are held in banks which are expected to meet the Basel Il
requirements which address the level of banks' reserves
and their ability to wathstand losses

www londonsecunty org
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&€ The Group continues its evolution from
being solely an extinguisher supplier
to the customers’ safety partner. At
the same time the Group will continue
to concentrate on its cost base to

maintain profitability. ”

Despite difficult trading conditions the care Group
produced a good stable performance demonstrating
the strength of our activities The Group I1s now
benefitting substantially from fully integrating past
acquisihions and realising the forecasted synergy
savings These newly acquired customers are now
able to benefit from the wider portfolio of services
the Group can offer We have reviewed our pricing
strategy to ensure a consistently lower attrition
rate year on year

The Group has continued to develop its fixed
suppression systems actmity through a number
of international projects

New legistation in The Netherlands cancerning

the composihion of foam in fixed systems contnbuted
£1 7 milhon to turnover The legislation required the
replacement of non complant products before the
end of 2011

The nvestment in the partial autoration of our fire
extingwisher assembly ine has started to pay for itself
in 2011 through increased productivity and better
qualty control A further investment has started on
the construchion of more efficient new facitities for
the Graup in 2012 at one of its UK sites

The Group has continued to support and develop its
traditional business roots In senvicing fire extinguishers,
hose reels and fire alarms and growing our new activbies
through our multi-service strategy offening This was
achieved through a senes of training and employee
development programmes The business will continue

to develop new sales channels that will enable the Group
to take advantage of favourable market conditions and
opportunities as they anse The Group continues its
evolution from being solely an extinguisher supplher

to the customers' safety partner At the same time

the Group will continue to concentrate on its cost
base to mamntain profitability during the difficult
economic environment

www londonsecunty org
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Directors and company advisers

Executive Directors

Jacques Gaston Murray (92)

Chairman

Mr Murray's involverment in the fire ndustry
began i 1961 with his investment in a
business which became General Incendie

S A, one of France's largest fire extinguisher
companes He nvested in MNu-Swaft and
became Charman in 1982 and the majarity
sharehaolder in 1984 when Nu-Swift acquired
Associated Fire Protection Limited, which
owned General Incendie SA He has a
business interest in, and 1s Charman of,
Andrews Sykes Group plc {‘Andrews
Sykes”), a separately AIM quoted

UK company

Jean-Jacques Murray {45)

Vice Chairman

Jean-Jacques Murray is the son of
Jacques Gaston Murray His responsibility
1s the contrel and strategic direction of
the Group He 1s a Non-Executive Vice
Chairman of Andrews Sykes

Xavier Mignolet {47)

Operations Director

Xavier Mignolet joined the Group n 1995

He 15 responsible for the Group's operations
He 1s a Non-Executive Director of
Andrews Sykes

Emmanuet Sebag (43)

Executive Director

Emmanuel Sebag has responsibility

for review and supervision of Group
operations He s a Non-Executive Director
of Andrews Sykes

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Henry Shouler (74)

Senior Independent

Non-Executive Director

Henry Shouter 1s a Director of PKL
Holdings plc He also has a number of
other directorships in private companies

Michael Galler (76)

'ndependent Non-Executive Director
Michael Gailer 1s a Non-Executive Director
of Andrews Sykes and a number of
private companies

Non-Executive Directors

Jean-Pierre Murray (43)

Non-Executive Director

Jean-Pierre Murray is the son of
Jacques Gaston Murray He 1s a
Non-Executive Director of Andrews Sykes
and a number of private companies

Mane-Claire Leon (48)

Non-Executive Director

Mane-Claire Leon has been responsible
for managing various projects around
the world with Jacques Gaston Murray
She 1s a Non-Executive Director of
Andrews Sykes

Company advisers
Company Secretary
and Registered Office
Richard Pollard

Wistons Lane

Elland

West Yorkshire HX5 9DT

Registered number
53417

Chartered accountants
and statutory auditor
KPMG Audit Ple

1 The Embankment
Neville Street

Leeds LS1 4DW

Registrars

Capita Registrars
Narthern House
Woodsome Park
Fenay Bridge
Huddersfteld HD8 OLA

Bankers
Lloyds Banking Group plc

Solicitors

Salans

Milfennium Bridge House
2 Lambeth Hsll

London EC4V 4A]

Walker Morrns
Kings Court

12 King Street
Leeds LS1 2HL

Stockbrokers and
nominated adwvisers
N+1 Brewin LLP
34 Lisbon Street
Leeds LS1 4LX
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Report of the directors

The Directars present ther report and the audited Group and Parent Company financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011

Principal activities

London Securty plc 1s an investment holding company and its Board co-ordinates the Group's activities The principal
actmties of the subsidiaries of the Group are the manufaciure, sale and rental of fire protection equipment and the
provision of associated maintenance services

Results and dividends

The Consolidated Income Statement shows a profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company tor the year
ended 31 December 2011 of £14 1 million {2010 £13 1 milhon) The Beoard i1s not recommending the payment of a final
divdend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010 £Nil) Anintenm dmvidend of £2 9 millkon was paid in

the year (2010 £2 1 mithon)

Business Review and future prospects

The information that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review {as required by Section 417 of the Compames Act 2006),
which s incorporated in thus Report of the Directors by reference, including the review of the Group’s business and future
prospects, 1s included in the Charrman's Statement and the Financial Review on pages 4 to 6 Key performance indicators
are shown on page 5

Directors
The Directors of the Parent Company who served during the whole of the year ended 31 December 2011, and up to the
date of sigmng the Group and Parent Company financial statements, except where stated, were

Executive Directors
J G Murray, J-J Murray, X Mignolet and E Sebag were Directors through the whole of the year ended 31 December 2011

J-C Pillois resigned on 21 December 2011

Non-Executive Directors
M Gailler, M-C Leon, H Shouler and J-P Murray were Directors through the whole of the year ended 31 December 2011

J G Murray, J-P Murray and E Sebag retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting

None of the Directors have a service contract with the Parent Company
Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 8

Directors’ interests
Na Director in office at 31 December 2011 had any disclosable interest in the share capital of the Parent Company or any
subsidiary underaking

Substantial shareholdings
At 2 May 2012, the Parent Company had been notified of the {oliowing interests of 3% or more in its share capital

Percentage

Number of share

of shares capuial

EOI Fire SARL 9,861,954 8043%
Tnstar Fire Corp 2,256,033 1840%

In so far as it Is aware, the Parent Company has no institutional shareholders

Directors’ share options
The Directors held no options to subscribe for ordinary shares at 31 Degcember 2011 under the Group's Inland Revenue
unapproved share option scheme Options exercised dunng the year are detalled in note 22 to the accounts

www londonsecurnty org




1

Lendon Security plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

Report of the directors continued

Health, safety and the environment

The maintenance and improvement of werking standards to safeguard the health and wellbeing of staff and customers
alkke 1s a continuing pnionty Health and Safety Officers are appointed at each Group location and they receive periodic
training to keep abreast of both legislative requirements and technological advances It 1s Group policy to operate in

a reasonable manner with regard to the environment

Employment of disabled persons

The Group 1s committed to employment policies that folow best practice based on equal opportunities for all employees,
irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or marttal status and offers appropnate traning and career development far disabled
staff if members of staff become disabled the Group continues employment wherever possible and arranges retraining

Employse involvernent

The Group recognises the need to ensure effective communications with employees to encourage involvement in the
Group's performance and achieve a commen awareness of factors affecting that performance Polictes and procedures
have been developed to suit the needs of each subsichary undertaking, which take into account factors such as numbers
employed and location, and include newsletters and communication meetings

Payment to suppliers

The Parent Company and Group agree payment terms with all suppliers when they enter into binding purchase cantracts
The Group seeks to abide by the payment terms agreed with suppliers whenever it 1s satisfied that the supplier has provided
the goods or services m accordance with the agreed terms and conditions The Group does not follow any standard or
externat code which deals specifically with the payment of suppliers

At 31 December 2011 Group average creditor days were 57 days (2010 39 days) The Parent Company had no trade
creditors at either year end

Donations
The Parent Gompany and Group made no political donations during the year (2010 £Nif) and made charitable donations
of £2,500 {2010 £Nil)

Purchase of own shares and authorities to issue shares

As at 2 May 2012 there remained outstanding general authonty for the Directors to purchase a further 500,000 ordinary
shares Resolution 8 1s to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to extend thus authorty untl the 2013 Annual
General Meeting

The special business to be proposed at the 2012 Annual General Meeting also includes, at resolution 7, a special
resolution to authonse the Directors to 1ssue shares for cash, other than pro rata to existing shareholdings, in connection
with any offer by way of nghts not stnctly in accordance with statutory pre-emption nghts or otherwise, up to a maximum
nominal value of £6,130 being 5% of the Parent Company's issued ordinary share capital This authonty will expire on tha
earlier of the date of next year's Annual General Meeting or 15 months after the passing of the resolution The passing of
that resolution is subject to resolution 6, being an ordinary resolution, being approved to authonse the Directors to have
the power to 1ssue ordinary shares

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor
The Directars of the Parent Company at the date of this report confirm that
+ so far as each Director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s unaware, and

= each Director has taken all steps he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself or herself aware
of any audit information and to establish that the Parent Company's auditor 18 aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418(2) of the Companies
Act 2006

www londonsecurity org
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Birectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Parent Company financial statements
in accordance wath apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each financial year

As required by the AIM Rules of the London Stock Exchange they are required to prepare the Group financial statements
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial
statements 1N accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

UUnder company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that pernod In prepanng
each of the Group and Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to

« select sutable accounting pohicies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
+ for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

+ for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it 1s inappropuate to presume that the Group
and the Parent Company will conttnue 1In business

The Dueclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company
and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and o prevent and detect
fraud and other rregulantes

The Dwectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s websiie Legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other junsdictions

Independent auditor
A resolution is to be proposed at the Annuat General Meeting in accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006 for the
re-appomtment of KPMG Audtt Ple as auditor of the Parent Company and authonsing the Directors to set thesr remuneration

Annual General Meeting

The Notice of the Annual General Mesting 15 set out on pages 49 to 51 and all shareholders are invited to attend in person if they
wish or by proxy if they are unable fo attend A farm of proxy I1s enclosed for you to complete according to the instructions
printed on 1t and send to the Parent Company's registrars  All proxies must be recewved by the registrar by 11 am on

11 June 2012 Appamtment of a proxy will not prevent you from attending and voting at the Meeting if you subsequently
find that you are able to do so

By order of the Board

R Pollard
Company Secreta
2 May 2012
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Directors’ remuneration report

The Parent Company has followed the provisions in Schedule B of the Combined Code with respect to Directors’ remuneration
except that, due to the small size of the Board, the remuneration committee does not consist exclusively of Independent
Non-Executive Directors As the Parent Company 1s guoted on AIM, it i1s not required to make disclosures specified

by the Remuneration Report Regulations 2002

Remuneration committee (unaudited)

The remuneration committee compnses H Shouler, M Gailer and J-J Murray, the majonty being Non-Executive Directors
of the Company who are independent of management The committee 1s chaired by B Shouler The remuneration of
Non-Executive Directors is set by a committee of the other Directors No Director 1s nvolved in deciding his or her

own remuneration

Policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration (unaudited)
It 1s the Parent Company's policy to provide the packages needed to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required, beanng in mind the size and resources of the Parent Company and its posihion relative to other companies

Directors' remuneration (audited)

Directors’ emoluments totalled £794,133 (2010 £620,394) This includes an amount paid to the highest paid Director |
of £287,442 (2010 £217,724)

In compliance with the amendment to AIM Rule 19 the followng disclosure in respect of Directors' remuneration 1s made

Emcluments and compansaton

including any cash or
non-cash benefits receved

2011 2010
JG Murray £Nil NIl
J-J Murray £142,500 £75,423
J-C Pillois £287,442 £132,752
X Mignolet £254,724 £217,724
E Sebag £30,467 £107,182
J-P Murray £20,000 £20,000
M-C Leon £20,000 £20,000
H Shouler £20,000 £20,000
M Gaier £19,000 £19,000

J-C Pillois resigned on 21 December 2011 and a settlement package was agreed which will result in the payment of 15
months' salary at a cost of £159,680 during the course of 2012 and 2013 As this unconditional settiement package was
agreed pnor to the year end this amount is included in the disclosure above

None of the Directors participate in Group pension arrangemeants The Company paid no contributions to any private
pension schemes

Detatls of Directors’ share options are given in the Directors’ Report

The costs relating to the Head Office and other expenses of the Executive Directors are limited under a Senaces Agreement
dated 10 December 1999 and reviewed annually The total costs amounted to £2,045,000 (2010 £1,853,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2011 as per the Services Agreement

On behalf of the Board
ME2ne_.  Manice

H Shouler
Chairman of the remuneration committee
2 May 2012
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of London Security plc

We have audied the financial statements of Londen Security plc for the year ended 31 December 2011 set out on pages
1410 48 The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial staternents

15 applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements 1s applicable law and
UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 1o the Company's members those
malters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's Report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone cther than the Company and the Company's members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibiihies of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement set out on page 11, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur responsibility is to
audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Inlernational Standards
on Auditing (UK and ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financiat stalements 1s provided on the APB's web-site at www Ir¢ arg uk/apby/
scope/private cfm

Cpinign on financial statements
In our opinion

> the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs
as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

> the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opmion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements ‘
are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to repor by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you If,
IN Our opINton

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

> the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement wath the accounting records and returns, or
> cartain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

> Ve have not recaived all the information and explanations we require for our audit
>
D J Hutchinson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountanis

1, The Embankment,

Neville Street,

Leeds

LS1 4DW

2 May 2012
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

Notes £ 000 €000
Revenue 96,267 85,499
Cost of sales (19.481) (15.254)
Gross profit 76,786 70,245
Distnbution costs (35,474) (31,755)
Administrative expenses (20,554) (19,162)
Operating profit 20,758 19,328
EBITDA* 24,549 22,679
Depreciation and amortrsation (3,791) {3.351)
Operating profit 20,758 19,328
Finance income 855 1,093
Finance costs (1,286) (1,726)
Finance costs — net 6 (431) (633)
Profit before iIncome tax 7 20,327 18,695
Income tax expense 8 {6,199) {5.613)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Company 14,128 13,082
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted 9 115 2p 106 5p
* Earnings before interest, 1ax, depreciation amaorusation and imparment charges
The notes on pages 18 to 42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
The above results are all as a result of continuing operations
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2011 o oo

Naotes £ 000 £000
Profit for the financial year 14,128 13,082
Other comprehensive income
- currency translation differences on foreign currency net investments, net of tax (421) (357)
— foreign currency loan hedges, net of tax — 465
- actuaral (loss)/gain recogmised in pension scheme 20 (68) 151
— movement on detferred tax relating to pension scheme 18 16 (21)
— net pension asset not recognised due to uncertamty over future recoverability 20 {568) (653)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax {1,041) (415)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 13,087 12,667
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Londen Secunty plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2011

Share Share Capital Merger Other andplrc?‘:s‘
capital premium redemption raserve reserve accaunt Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
At 1 January 2010 123 — — 2,033 6,310 37,191 45,657
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial period — — — — — 13,082 13,082
Other comprehensive Income
-~ exchange adjustments — — — — (357) — (357)
— actuanal gain on pension scheme — — — e — 151 151
- movement on deferred tax relating
to pension asset — — — — — {21) {(21)
- nat pension asset not recognised due
o uncertainty over future recoverability — — —_ — — (653) {653)
—foreign currency loan hedges net of tax — — — —— 357 108 465
Total comprehensive income for the year - — — — — 12,667 12,667
Contrbutions by and distributions
to owners of the Company
- dividends — — — — — (2,086} (2.0886)
— purchase of own shares — — — e — (205) (205)
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners of the Company — — — —r — (2.291) (2,291)
At 1 January 2011 123 — — 2,033 6,310 47 567 56,033
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial period — — — e — 14,128 14,128
Other comprehensive Income
- exchange adjustments - — — — {421) — {421}
— actuanal loss on pension scheme — — — — — (68} [(68)
— movement on deferred tax relating
to pension asset — —_— — — — 16 16
— net pension asset not recognised due
to uncertanty over future recaverability — — — — — (568) (568)
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — (421) 13,508 13,087
Contnbubeons by and distnbutions to owners
of the Company
- dmdends — — — — — (2,944) (2,944)
—1ssue of shares — 344 — — — — 344
— purchase of own shares — — 1 — — {483) {482)
Total contributions by and distnbutions to owners
of the Company — 344 1 — — (3,427) (3,082
At 31 December 2011 123 344 1 2,033 5,889 57,648 66,038

The merger reserve Is not a distributable reserve The other reserve relates entirely to the effects of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates The creation of the share premium reserve 1s detaled in note 22 to the accounts
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2011

201 2010
Nates £000 €000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 7,389 7,719
Intangible assets 12 53,454 51,960
Deferred tax asset 18 500 589

61,343 60,268

Current assels

Inventones 14 8,329 7,611
Trade and other receivables 15 18,373 16,604
Cash and cash equvalents 16 23,043 22,286
49,745 46,501
Total assets 111,088 106,769
Liabiities
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 17 (15819) (14,498)
Income tax habilities {1,004} (968)
Borrowings 19 (7,030) (7,126)
Provision for habilttes and charges 21 (109) )

(24,062) (22,601)

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 (526) (457)
Borrowings 19 (19,329) (26,730)
Denvative financial instruments 13 {103) {30)
Deferred tax habiities 18 (359) (286)
Retrement benefit obligations 20 {671) (632)
(20,988) (28,135)
Total liabilities (45,050) (50,736)
Net assets 66,038 56,033
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares 22 123 123
Share premium 22 344 —
Capital redemption reserve 22 1 —
Merger reserve 2,033 2,033
Other reserves 5,889 6,310
Retamned earnings 57,648 47 567
Total shareholders’ equity 66,038 56,033

The financial statements on pages 14 to 42 were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 May 2012 and were signed
on its behalf by

JG Murray
Chairrman
2 May 2012

55 Huawh'T
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Consolidated statement of cash flow
for the year ended 31 December 2011
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2011 2010
Notes £ 000 €000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23 22,887 21,845
Interest paid (626) (713)
Income tax paid (6,027} (4,900)
Net cash generated from operating activities 16,234 16,232
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsichary undertakings (net of cash acquired) 26 {1,390) —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (2,332) (1,746)
Proceeds from sale of propenty, plant and equipment 300 259
Purchases of intangible assets {1,653) (883)
Interest received 266 171
Net cash used tn Investing activities (4,809) (2,199)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of bormowings 24 (7,252) (8,337)
Purchase of own shares (482) {205)
Issue of shares 344 —_
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders (2,944) {2,086}
Net cash used n financing activities (10,334) (10,628)
Effects of exchange rates an cash and cash equivalents {334) (189)
Net increase in cash in the year 757 3,216
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 22,286 19,070
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16 23,043 22,286
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1 General information
London Secunty plc (the "Parent Company") 1s a leader in the European fire secunty industry, providing fire protection
for over 170,000 customers through a local presence in the UK, Belgium, the Netherlands and Austna

The Parent Company 1s a public imited hability company incorporated and domiciled in England The registered office
15 Wistons Lane, Elland, West Yorkshire HX5 9DT

The Parent Company has its pnmary listing on AIM, part of the London Stock Exchange

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Group financial statements are set out below
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

These Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adapted by the EU, IFRIC interpretations
and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS These Group financial
statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, as madifted by accounting for denvative financial
instruments at far value through profit or loss

The Directors have prepared these financial statements on the fundamental assumption that the Group I1s a going concern
and will continue to trade for at least 12 months following the date of approval of the financial statements In determining
whether the Group’s accounts should be prepared on a going concern basis the Directors have considered the factors
likely to affect the future performance The Directors have reviewed trading and cash flow forecasts as part of the going
concern assessment and based on this have the expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future

Accounting developments
(a) The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS as at 1 January 2011
* |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised 2009),

¢ amendment to IFRIC 14 "Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement”, and
+ |AS 1 "Presentation of financial statements” — presentation of statement of changes in equity

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective for the year ended 31 December 2011 but not relevant
The following standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting perniods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 but have no matenal impact on the Group

» IFRS 1 “First-time adoption of IFRSs” — accounting policy changes n the vear of adoption,
* IFRS 1 "First-time adoption of IFRSs” — revaluation basis as deemed cost,

* |IFRS 1 “First-ime adoption of IFRSs™ — use of deemed cost for rate-regulated operations,
* |IFRS 7 "Financial instruments disclosures” — amendments to disclosures,

+ IFRIC 13 "Customer loyalty programmes" — fair value of award credit,

» amendment to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets”, and

* ]AS 34 "Intenm Financial Reporting — Significant events and transactions”
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Accounting developrments continued
{c) The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Group's accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 or later penods, but the Group has not adopted them early
» IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” addresses the classificahon, measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial labilites The standard contains two prnimary measurement categones for financial assets amortised cost
and far value,

« amendments to IFRS 1 Severe hypennflation and removat of fixed dates for first-tme adoplters An entity must present
separately the tems of OCI that may be reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss,

* government loans — Amendments to IFRS 1,

» IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements builds on exsting principles by identifying the concept of contrel as
the deterrmiming factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the
Parent Company,

« JAS 27 (2011) "Separate financial statements”,
+ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements”,
* amendments to IAS 28 (2008),

« IFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities” ncludes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interest in other
entiies, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles,

« IFRS 13 “Farr value measurement” ams to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definiion
of farr value and single source of far value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs,

+ amendments to IAS 32 “Offsetting financial assets and financial iabilbies”,

+ amendments to IFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial kabiities”,

+ |FRIC 20 - Stnpping costs in the production phase of a surface mine,

+ amendments to IAS 19 "Defined benefit plans” The amendment does not impact the Group, and

+ |AS 28 “Investments In associates and joint ventures” (2011)

None of the above are expected to have a matenal impact on the results or inancial position of the Group

Consolidation

Subsichanes are all enties (iIncluding special purpose entiies) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of maore than one half of the voling nghts The existence
and effect of potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entty Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date on which controlis transferred to the
Group They are de-consohdated from the date that conirol ceases All subsidiaries share the same reporting date, being
31 December, and same accounting policies as London Secunty plc

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquistion of subsidiaries by the Group The cost of an
acquisition 1s measured as the farr value of the assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange The ¢osts directly attnbutable to the acquisthon are expensed, with the exception of those relating
to the costs to 1ssue debl or equity secunties, which are recognised m accordance with IAS 32 and IAS 39 |dentifiable
assets acquired and habiities and contingent labilities assumed n a bustiness combination are measured inibially at their
farr values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minornty interest The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the farr value of the Group's share of the identfiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Consolidation continued

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eimimnated
Unrealsed losses are also elminated but considered an impawment indicator of the asset transferred

On transition to IFRS, the Directors fixed the value of consohdated goodwill on the European subsidiaries at the rate
i effect at the date of transition, as permitted under IFRS 1 Hence, the consohdated goodwill 1s presented at amortised
cost less any provision for diminution in value

Segment reporting

An operating segment 1s a group of assets and operations for which discrete financial information 1s available that

is regularly reviewed by the CODM The Directors have concluded that there 1s a single operating segment as defined
by IFRS 8, being the prowision and maintenance of fire protection equipment in Europe  Consequently, the results for
the year and assets and habilities relate to the one operating segment and one geographical area

Foreign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entihes are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency") The Group financial statements are
presented in Sterhing, which 1s the Parent Company's functional and presentation currency

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resutting from the settlement of such transachons and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and hahifities dencminated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the Income Statement

(c) Group compantes
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hypennflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

(0 assets and habilities for each Statement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date
of that Statement of Financial Position,

() income and expenses for each Income Statement are translated at average exchange rates, and

{m) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity and are reported within
the Statement of Comprehensive Income

In accordance with IFRS 1, the translation reserve has been set at £Nil at the date of transition to IFRS

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to shareholders’ equity
When a foreign cperation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised 1n the Income Statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale

Praperty, plant and equipment

Property 1s camed at deemed cost at the date of transition to IFRS based on the previous UK GAAF valuations Plant and
equipment held at the date of fransition and subsequent additions to property, plant and equipment are stated at purchase
cost including directly attnbutable costs, less accumulated depreciation

Subsequent costs are recogrised when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the items wiil flow
to the Group and the costs of the item can be measured reliably
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Depreciation on all other assets 1s calculated using the straight line method to allocate
therr cost less residual value over their estmated useful lives, as follows

Freehold buikdings 2-6%
Plant, machinery and extinguisher rental umits 10 — 33%
Motor vehicles and share in aircraft 5-33%
Fixtures, fittngs and equipment 10%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropnate at each Statement of Financial
Positon date

An asset’'s carrying amount 1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 15 greater
than its estimated recoverable amount

Gaing and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount These are included
in the Income Statement

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired Goodwill on acquisitron of subsidianies 1s included in “intangible assets” Separately recognised goodwill
s tested annually for mparment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use For the purposes of
assessing imparrment, assets are grouped at the fowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows

Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold

(b) Other trademarks and lkcences

Trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost Trademarks and licences have a finite useful life and are carred
at cost less accumulated amortisation Amortisation is calculated using the straight ine method to allocate the cost
of trademarks and licences over therr estimated useful lives (15 — 20 years)

(c) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software These costs are amortised over therr estmated useful Iives (3 — 5 years) using the straight ine method

() Service contracts

Acqurred service contracts are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acguire Amortisation is calculated using
the straight hne metheod to allocate the cost of the contracts over therr estimated useful lives (5 — 10 years) based on
information available to the Directors on average attrion rates

Dervative financial instruments and hedging actiities

The Group’s borrowings of £26 4 million (£21 6 millon denominated in Euros and £4 8 million denominated in Sterling)
are subject to fixed interest rate agreements for LIBOR of 1 04% and EURIBOR of 1 39% plus a margin of betwaen 0 6%
and 1 5% The agreements took effect from September 2011 and continue untl the loans are repaid in June 2013

Denvative financtal instruments are inthally measured at cost and are re-measured at farr value at the Statement
of Financial Position date with any valuation adjustment being reflected in the Income Statement
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Inventories

Inventonies are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s determined using the fust-in, first-out method
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw matenals, direct labour, other direct costs and related
productien overheads Net realisable value 1s the estmated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
vanable seling expenses Prowision is made for obsclete, slow moving or defective items where appropnate

Trade recenvables

Trade recewables are recognised mitiafly at fair value and subsequently adjusted for any proviston for imparrment

A provision for impairment of trade receivables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group wall not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the anginal terms of recewvables The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate The amount of the provisian 1s recogrised in the income Statement within administrative expenses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are included in the Statement of Financial Positton at cost Cash and cash equivalents includes
cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly hquid nvestments with oniginal matunties of
three months or less, less bank overdrafts where there 1s a legal nght of off-set Bank overdrafts are shown within
barrewings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Positton

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds

Where the Parent Company purchases its own shares, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of Income taxes), 1s deducted from equity atinbutable to the Parent Company's equity holders unti! the shares
are cancelled

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised at farr value

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised nitially at far value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised caost

Borrowings are classified as current habiliies unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the hability
for at least 12 months after the Statement of Financial Position date

Current and deferred income tax .
The current tncome tax charge 1s calculated on the basts of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of

Financial Position date in the countnes where the Company's subsidianes operate and generate taxable ncome  Management

penodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which apphcable tax regulation 1s subject to

mterpretation and establishes provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonties

Deferred income tax1s provided in full, using the net assets approach, on temporary differences ansing between the tax

bases of assets and habities and therr carrying amounts in the conschdated financial statements However, the deferred

Income tax is not accounted for If it anses from inihial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction other than a

busmess combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred

income tax s determmed using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement

of Financial Posttion date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s realised or the !
deferred income tax hability 1s settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be availlable against
which the temporary differences can be utiised
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension schemes The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance
companies or trustee-administered funds, determined by penodic actuanal calcutations The Group has both defined benefit
and defined contribution plans A defined contrnibution plan 1s a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions
nto a separate entity The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service i the current and prior pernods A defined
benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contnibution plan Typically, defined benefit plans define
an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recerve on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such

as age, years of service and compensation

The hability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position i respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s the present value
of the defined beneft obligation at the Staterment of Financial Position date less the fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuanal gains or losses and past service costs The defined benefit obhigation 1s calculated
triennially by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method The present value of the defined benehit obligation
1s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denomunated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pensicn habiity

The mterest cost and the expected return on the assets are shown within finance cost and finance income respectively within
the Consolidated Income Statement Actuanal gains and losses are recogmised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income Net defined benefit pension scheme deficits are presented separately on the Statement of Financial
Position within non-current habiliies before tax rehef The attributable deferred tax asset 1s included within deferred tax and is
subject to the recognition criteria as set out in the accounting policy on deferred taxation

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately admimistered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid The contributions are recogmsed as employee benefit expense when they are due

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 1s
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated Prowisions are not recognised for future operating losses

Prowvisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects nsks specific
to the liability

Exceptional tems
Significant transachions which occur outside the normal scope of business are classified as exceptional items

Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses the farr value of the consideration receved or recenvable for the sale of goods and services In
the ordinary course of the Group's activities Revenue 1s shown, net of value-added tax, esimated returns, rebates
and discounts and after ehminated sales within the Group Revenue 1s recognised as follows

{a) Cutnght sale of equipment
Revenue from the outnight sale of equipment i1s recogrised upon delivery to the customer

{b) Service
Revenue from the servicing of equipment 1s recogrised when the service has been performed

(c) Maintenance
Revenue from the provision of maintenance services is recognised aver the term of the maintenance coniract on a pra rata
basts with the unexpired portion held in deferred income

{d) Equipment leases
Revenue from the equipment leased to customers under an operating lease 1s recognised over the term of the lease,
typically five years, on a pro rata basis All contracts are cancellable
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition continued

(e} Long-term installation

Revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any vanations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments As soon as the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised in the Income
Statement in proportion to the stage of complstion of the contract Cantract expenses are recognised as incurred unless
they create an asset related to future contract actmty An expected loss on a contract 1s recogmised immediately in the
Income Statement

s

Cost of sales
Cost of sales includes direct matenal costs Other direct costs, largely direct labour, of £32 milkon (2010 £29 million)
are included within distribution costs

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives recerved from the lessor) are charged
to the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease

Dividend distnbution

Dmadend distribution to the Parent Company’s shareholders 1s recognmised as a hability in the Group's financial statements
when paid in the case of intenm dimdends or 1n the penod in which the dwvidends are approved by the Parent Company's
shareholders in the case of final dmdends

3 Financial nsk management

Financial nsk factors

The Board considers the Group has exposure to the following nisks foreign exchange risk, interest rate nsk and capital
nsk Risk management 1s carried out under treasury policies and guidelines authonsed and reviewed by the Board of
Directors This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nisks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measunng and managing nisk and the Group's management of capital The Board has also
considered the Group's exposure 1o credit nsk and liguidity sk The Group'’s trade recevables consist of a large number
of customers spread across diverse industries and geographical Jocations The Group does not have any significant credit
nsk exposure 1o any single customer As a result the Board has concluded that the carrying amount of financial assets
recarded in the financial statements, which 1s net of iImpairment losses, represents the Group's maximum gxposure to
credit nsk In view of the significant level of cash reserves held by the Group, the Board has concluded that it has minimal
exposure to hguidity nsk

{a) Foreign exchange nsk

The Group has certain investments 1n foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency transtation
nsk Currency exposure ansing from the net assets of the Group's foreign operations ts managed primarily through
barrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies

The Group's exposure to foreign currency nisk is as follows This 1s based on the carmying amount for monetary financial
instruments except derivatives when it 1s based on notional amounts

Sterling Eura Total
3i December 2011 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,865 19,178 23,043
Trade recewvables 3,434 14,939 18,373
Bank loans (4,732) (21,627) (26,359}
Trade payables (3,934) (11,985) (15,919)
Other payables (152) (852) (1,004)
Balance shest exposure (1,519) {347) (1,866}
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3 Financial nsk management continued
Financial ngk factors continued
(a) Foreign exchange nsk continued

Stering Euro Total
31 December 2010 £000 €000 £000
Cash and cash equwalents 4,917 17,369 22,286
Trade recevables 3,847 12,757 16,604
Bank loans (6,232) (27,624) (33,856)
Trade payables {(2,805) (11,593) (14,498)
Other payables (179) (789) {968)
Balance sheet exposure {552) (9,880) (10,432)

A 5% weakening of the Euro against Steriing at 31 December 2011 would have increased equity and profit or loss by £17,000
(2010 £482,000) This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the Statement of Financial Position date and had
been applied to nsk exposures existing at that date A 5% strengtheming of the Euro against Sterling at 31 December 2011
would have had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown overleaf, on the basis that all other vanables
remain constant

(b) Interest rate nsk
The Group's interest rate nisk anses from long-term borrowings These borrowings were 1ssued at vanable rates based
on EURIBOR and LIBOR and did expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate nsk by entening into fixed interest rate agreements The effect of these
agreements 1s to fix the Group's exposure to EURIBOR to 1 32% and LIBOR to 1 04% The agreements took effect from
September 2011 and provide interest rate cover until the loans are repaid in June 2013

A change of 50 basis paints n interest rates at the pnor Statement of Financial Posihon date would have decreased equity
and profit or loss by £158,000 (2010 £179,000) This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the prior Statement
of Financial Position date and had been applied to nsk exposures existing at that date This analysis assumes that all other
vanables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant and considers the effect of finanaial mstruments wath vanable
interest rates

{c) Capital nsk
The Group's objective In managing capital 1s to mamtain a strong capital base to support curient operations and planned
growth and to prowvide for an appropnate level of dvdend payment to shareholders

The Group Is not subject to external regulatory capital requirements

2011 2010
Total caputal £'000 €000
Total borrowings 26,359 33,858
Less cash and cash equivalents (23,043} {22,286}
Net debt 3,316 11,570
Total equity 66,038 56,033
Total capital 69,354 67,603

4 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements
Fair value estimation
The farr value of the fixed interest rate agreement 1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows

The nominal value less impairment prowision of trade recevables and payables are assumed to approamate to ther farr values

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nisk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying value of assets and habilities within the next financral year are discussed below
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4 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements continued

Farr value estmation continued

{a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impawrment, in accordance with its accounting pohicy
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations

The value-in-use calculations have used pre-tax cash flow projections based on the budget for the year ending 31 December 2011
and agreed business plans for the two years ending 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 Subsequent cash flows are
extrapolated using an estmated growth rate of 1% reflecting the mature nature of the market in which the Group operates The cash
flows have then been discounted using a pre-tax rate of 12% for the year ended 31 December 2011 A single discount rate
has been applied as the nsk associated with each element of goodwill 1s considered to be similar The value-in-use calculations
did not indicate impairment in any goodwill If the discount rate had been 5% higher there would still have been no impairment

in any goodwill

(b} Pension scheme assumptions and mortality tabfes

The carrying value of the defined benefit pension scheme 1s valued using actuanal valuations These valuations are based on
assumptions including the selection of the most appropnate mortality table for the profile of the members in the scheme and
the financial assumptions concerming discount rates and inflaion All these are estimates of fulure events and are therefore
uncertain The choices are based on advice recenved from the scheme's actuarnies which are checked from time to time
with benchmark surveys

Prior to the effect of deferred tax, the impact of a 0 5% increase in the inflation rate would be to decrease the pension
surplus by £239,000, a decrease of 0 5% in the inflation rate would be to increase the surplus by £210,000 The impact
of a 0 5% ingrease in the discount rate would be to increase the pension surplus by £670,000, a decrease of 0 5% in
the discount rate would be to decrease the surplus by £748,000

(¢) Intangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful fe
of each asset which In some cases Is In excess of the contracted life The Directars have made judgements based on the
evtdence in the market and histonical endence on attntien rates when determining the useful economic lives and based
on the legal nghts on the contracts being renewable

{d) Prowisions for doubtful debtors

Trade recevables are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at therr nominal value less any appropnate provisions
for irecoverable amounts In determining the need for a prowvision, judgemenit is required in estimating the likely levels
of recovery [n exercising this jJudgement, consideration 1s given to the overall economic environment as well as specific
indicators that the recovery of the balance may be in doubt

5 Employee benefit expense

2011 2010

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 30,241 27,668

Social securty costs 6,824 5,944

Gther pensions costs {note 20) 1,104 1,262
38,169 34,874 |

Number of employees 840 804

Directors’ remuneration 1s reported within audited sechans of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 12 under the
heading "Directors’ Remuneration (audited)”

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) dunng the year was as follows

2011 2010

Numnber Number

Production 54 50
Admnistration and management 785 754
Total 840 804
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& Finance income and costs

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Finance income
Bank interest recevable (266) {171)
Expected return oh pension scheme assets (note 20) (5839) (656)
Fair value of denvative financial instruments — (266)
Total finance income (855) {1,083}
Finance costs
Bank loans, averdrafts and other loans repayable within five years 626 713
Amortisation of interest cap fees — 217
Farr value of denvative financial instruments 73 -
Exchange loss on foreign currency balances 7 39
Interest on pension scheme habilties 580 757
Total finance costs 1,286 1,726
Net finance costs 431 633
7 Profit before income tax
Profit before iIncome tax 1s stated after charging/{crediting)
2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,375 2170
Amortisation on intangible fixed assets 1,416 1,181
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (76) (39)
Loss on disposal of intangble assets — 4
Hrre charges under operating leases
- land and buildings 249 228
- other 747 353

Services provided by the Group's external auditor and network firms

During the year, the Group (including s overseas subsidianes) obtained the following services from the Group's auditor

at costs as detalled below

20m 2010
£ 000 £000
Audt services
Fees payable to the Parent Company's auditor for the audit of Group's annual accounts 16 14
Fees payable to the Parent Company's auditor and its network firms for other serices
— the audit of the Parent Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 133 132
Services relating to taxation
— comphance serices 40 —
—adwvisory services 1 —_
190 146
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B Income tax expense

2011 2010
£ 000 €00
United Kingdom
Corporation tax 265 308
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (52) {114)
213 194
Foreign tax
Corporation taxes 5,695 5,285
Total current tax 5,908 5,479
Deferred tax
Onginal and reversal of tming differences representing
- United Kingdom 117 32
— foreign tax 174 102
Total deferred tax (note 18) 291 134
Total tax charge 6,199 5613
The tax for the year is higher (2010 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom 26 5%
(2010 28%) The differences are explained below
2011 2010
€000 £000
Profit on ordinary actvities before taxation 20,327 18,605
Profit on ordinary activiies multphed by standard rate of corparation tax
in the United Kingdom of 26 5% (2010 28%) 5,387 5,265
Effects of
- expenses not deduchble for tax purposes 57 71
- deferred tax relating to pension contributions (16) 24
— ovarseas tax in excess of UK standard 823 367
— PrIOF year Qver provision (52) (114)
Total tax charge 6,199 5613

The Group expects to pay similar levels of taxation gomng forward i has been announced that the main UK rate
of corporation tax will reduce from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012

9 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share ("EPS™) 1s based on the profit on ordinary activities after taxation
of £14,128,000 (2010 £13,082,000) and on 12,265,538 (2010 12,284,170) ordinary shares, being the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year

For diluted EPS, the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares There was no difference in the weighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic and diluted

earnings per share as there are no potentally dilutve shares outstanding

201 2010
£ 000 Pence £000 Pence
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 14,128 1152 13,082 1065
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10 Dividends per share

2011 2010
£ 000 £000

Equity — ordinary shares
Intenm paid £0 24 (2010 £0 17) per share

2,944 2,086

The Board 15 not recommending the payment of a final dvdend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010 £Nil)

11 Property, plant and equipment

Fraehold

Motor
vehicles

Fixtures

land and Plant and Extnguisher and ghare finngs and
butldings machinery rental units in aircraft equipment Totat
£ 000 £000 £ 000 €000 £000 £ 000

Cost
At 1 January 2010 7,293 7.476 9,749 8,262 4,444 37,224
Additions 28 87 339 1,148 144 1,746
Disposals — {3.819) (135) (1,227) (243) (5,424)
Exchange adjustment (201) (184) (156) (147) (95) (783)
At 1 January 2011 7,120 3,560 9,797 8,036 4,250 32,763
Additions 91 226 269 1,444 302 2,332
On acquisitions of subsichary undertakings — — o 31 — 31
Disposals — (38) (107) {1,319 (34) (1,498)
Exchange adjustment (98} {46) (178) {27) (128) (472)
At 31 December 2011 7.113 3,702 9,784 8,165 4,392 33,156
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2010 4,905 7.072 9,023 3,943 3,728 28,672
Disposals — (3.817) {(110) (1,039 [239) (5,205)
Charge for the year 153 119 319 1,330 249 2170
Exchange adjustment (162) (170) {139) {43) {79) {593)
At 1 January 2011 4,896 3,204 9,083 4,191 3,660 25,044
Disposals — (38) (88) {1,115) (33) {1,274)
Charge for the year 152 121 310 1,419 373 2,375
Exchange adjustment 81 (37) (157) (26) 77 (378)
At 31 December 2011 4,967 3,250 9,158 4,469 3,923 25,767
Net book amount
At 31 December 2011 2,146 452 626 3,696 469 7,389
At 31 December 2010 2,224 356 704 3,845 590 7.719
At 31 December 2009 2,388 404 726 4,319 715 8,552

Depreciation and profitloss on disposal have been charged to the Income Statement through administrative expenses

Freehold land is not depreciated
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12 Intangible assets

Service
Goodwlt contracts Softwara Other Total
£000 £ 000 €000 €000 €000

Cost
At 1 January 2010 61,960 7.032 518 1,764 71,274
Additions — 819 13 51 833
Disposals — (4) — — 4}
Exchange differences 7 {178) (12 (61) (244)
At 1 January 2011 61,967 7,669 519 1,754 71,909
Additions — 1,388 181 84 1,653
On acquisittons of subsichary undertakings 408 962 — — 1,370
Exchange differences (15) (131) (11 (32) {189)
At 31 December 2011 62,360 9,888 689 1,806 74,743
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2010 15,871 1,776 415 785 18,847
Charge for the year _ 990 7 184 1,181
Exchange differences — (42) )] {28) (79)
At 1 January 2011 15,871 2,724 413 941 19,949
Charge for the year — 1,225 61 130 1,416
Exchange differences — (50) (6} (20) {76)
At 31 December 2011 15,871 3,899 468 1,051 21,289
Net book amount
At 31 December 2011 46,489 5,889 221 755 53,454
At 31 December 2010 46,096 4,945 106 813 51,960
At 31 December 2009 46,089 5,256 103 a979 52,427

Amortisation has been charged to the Income Statement through administrative expenses Additions are discussed in
further detall in note 26

Impairment tests for goodwall

The recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use calculations for each cash-generating unit
(CGU) The value-in-use calculations have used pre-tax cash flow projections based on the budget for the year ending
31 December 2011 and agreed business plans for the two years ending 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013
Subsequent cash flows are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 1% reflecting the mature nature of the market
in which the Group operates The cash flows have then been discounted using a pre-tax rate of 12% for the year ending
31 December 2011 which reflects the expected fong-term average growth rate for the industry in which the Group operates
A single discount rate has been applied as the nsk assooiated with each element of goodwill 1s considered 1o be similar
The value-in-use calculations did not indicate iImparrment in any goodwill The value of goodwill 1s split into seven CGUSs to
assess indicators of impairment Of the total goodwill £37,301,000 relates to Ansul S A and Ansul B V, £7,017,000 relates
to TVF (UK) Limited with the balance relating to the remaining five CGUs which are indvidually considered insigrificant

13 Denwvative financial instruments

2011 2010
Assets Lahilbes Assels Liatiktes
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £'000
Interest rale agreements — 103 — 30

The Group has entered into interest rate agresments fixang LIBOR to 1 04% and EURIBOR to 1 39% The agreements took
effect from September 2011 and remain in effect until the loans are repaid in 2013 The hability represents the forecast
increase In interest payable as a result of these agreements over the remaining hfe of the loans at the year end
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14 Inventories

2011 2010
£'000 £000
Raw maternals and consumables 3,894 3912
Work in progress 337 325
Finished goods 4,008 3,374

8,329 7,611

The cost of Inventanes recagnised as expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £18,750,000 (2010 £14,475,000)
No (2010 £Nd) previous rwventory write downs have heen reversed

15 Trade and other receivables

2011 2010

£ 000 €000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade recewvables 17,585 16,333
Less provision for imparment of recevables (980) {1,092)
Trade recevables — net 16,605 15,241
Amounts owed by related undertakings 255 236
Other receivables 475 334
Prepayments and accrued income 284 781
Taxation recoverable 54 12

18,373 16,604
Amounts owed by related undertakings do not attract interest and no secunty 1s held in respect of these balances

As of 31 December 2011, trade recevables of £11,027,000 (2010 £10,537,000) were fully performing

As of 31 December 2011, trade recevables of £3,674,000 (2010 £3,235,000) were past due but not impaired These relate
to a number of independent customers for wham there 1s no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these trade
recevables I1s as follows

201 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Up to three months 3,370 2,898
Three to six months 304 337

3,674 3,235

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of £2,884,000 {2010 £2,561,000) were impaired and provided for The amount
of the provision was £880,000 (2010 £1,092,000) It was assessed that a portion of the recevables 1s expected to be
recovered The ageing of these recevables is as follows

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Up to three months 1,275 1,124
Three to six months 642 720
Six months or greater 967 717

2,884 2,561
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15 Trade and other receivables continued
The carrying amount of the Group's trade and other recewvables are denominated in the following currencies

2011 2010

£ 000 £000
Sterling 4,378 3,847
Euro 13,995 12,757
Total 18,373 16,604
These are detaled as Sterling equivalent
Movements in the Group proviston for imparred trade recewables are as follows

2011 2010

£ 000 £000
At 1 January 1,092 1,089
Provision for receivables’ impairment 390 326
Recewvables written off in the year as uncollectable (443) (261)
Unused amounts reversed (59) {42)
At 31 December 980 1,092

The creation and release of the provision for impaired recewvables has been included in administrative expenses in
the Income Statement Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there 1s no expectation
of recovenng additional cash The other classes within trade and cther receivables do not contain imparred assets
The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned

above
The carmng value of trade and other receivables approximates to fair value
There 1s no impairment of other recevables

The Group does not hold any collateral as secunty

16 Cash and cash equivalents

2043 2010
€000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 23,043 22,286
The carrying value of cash at bank and in hand represents its far value due to its short matunty
17 Trade and other payables
2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Current
Trade payables 3,065 1,634
Other payables 2,267 3,171
Other taxation and social secunty 6,424 5,751
Accruals 1,556 1,480
Deferred income 2,607 2,452
15,919 14,498
2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Non-current (one to two years)}
Other payables 526 457
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18 Deferred income tax

Amount Amount
{promded)/recognised {unprawded)/unrecognised
2011 2010 2011 2010
£ 000 £000 £000 €000
Defarred tax asset
Pension deficit 229 198 — —
Accelerated capital allowances 271 391 — —
Losses — — 1,428 1,699
500 589 1,428 1,598
Deferred tax liabilities
Shor-term timing differences (359} {286) — —
(359) {286) — —
Net deferred tax asset 141 303 1,428 1,598
£000
At 1 January 2011 303
Exchange differences (4)
Amount charged to the Consolidated Ihcome Statement {note 8) {174)
Amount charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 16
At 31 December 2011 141

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the penods i which
tming differences will reverse, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position

date, being a rate of 25%

19 Borrowings

2011 2010
£'000 £000
Non-current (more than one year but less than five years)
Bank borrowangs
—1none to two years 19,329 7,124
— between two and five years — 19,606
19,329 26,730
Current (ane year or less or on demand)
Bank borrowings 7,030 7,128
7,030 7126
Total borrowings 26,359 33,856

Interest rates (including the bank’s margin) on the bank loans in existence durning the year averaged 2 02%
{2010 1 B1%) per annum
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19 Borrowings continued

The tabte below analyses the Group's financial labiliies inctuding interest which will be settled on a net basis into relevant
ratunty groupings based on the remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows which have been calcutated using spot rates at the

relevant balance sheet date

2011 2010
Financial maturty analysis £ 000 £'000
Bank borrowings
—within one year 7,486 7,674
—In one to two years 19,516 7.549
— between two and five years - 19,774

27,002 34,997

The Drectors consider that the fair value of the bank loans are not matenally different from ther book values The estimated
fair value of the interest rate agreement has been included in the Statement of Financial Position as disclosed in note 13

The borrowings are secured by fixed and floating charges on the assets of the Group

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings, all of which are floating rate financial habilibes, are denominated in the
following currencies

Weighted Weightad
average average
Total intarest Total interest
201 fata 2010 rate
£ 000 2011 £000 2010
Currency
Sterling 4,732 16% 6,232 17%
Euro 21,627 21% 27,624 19%

26,359 20% 33,856 18%

Borrowing facihties
At 31 December 2011 the Group had an undrawn committed borrowing faciity of £1 8 mullion (2010 £1 8 milhon), which
expires in more than one year

20 Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates a number of pension schemes Details of the major schemes are set out below

Nu-Swift International Limited operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme, which was closed to new entrants
with effect from 1 December 2002 and to further accrual on 30 June 2007, providing benefits based on final pensionable
earnings The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, being invested with Legal and General
Investment Management The total pension cost of the Group 1s determined by an independent qualified actuary on

the basis of tnenmal valuations using the projected umit method The most recent valuation was at 31 December 2008
The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of
return on investments and the rates of Increase in pensions It was assumed that the investment returns would be 3 95%
per annum and that present and future penstons would increase at the rate of 2 9% per annum

The maost recent actuanal valuation as at 31 December 2008 showed that the market value of the scheme's assets was
£7.926,000 and that the actuanal value of those assets represented 75% of the benefits that had accrued to members

The move 1n the underlying measure for deferred pension revaluation from RPI to CPl has been included in the igures
presented at 31 December 2011 as the scheme rules requrre this change However, due to the wording of the scheme
rules, the pension increases in payment which are linked to inflation will not automatically move to CFl and therefore
the link to RPI for pension increases has been retained

www londonsecunty org




London Securnity plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

20 Retirement benefit obligations continued

At 31 December 2011 the scheme had a net defined benefit surplus calculated in accordance with IAS 19 using the
assumphions set out overleaf of £1,221,000 {2010 net surplus £653,000) This asset has not been recognised in these
financial statements due to the uncertainty of its future recoverability in future penods This 1s due to the scheme being
closed to further accrual and the Group nat having an uncendibional nght to a refund of surplus cantnbutions

In addition there 1s a defined contrnbution stakeholder pension scheme 1n operation within the UK

The Ansul Group operates a number of funded pension schemes, the majonty of which are prescnbed by the State
Included within these 1s a funded pension scheme for which the majority of the Belgian employees are eligible, providing
benefts based on final pensionable earmings The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Ansul
Group, being invested with Delta Lloyd Life The total pension cost of the Ansul Group scheme 1s determined by an
independent qualfied actuary The most recent valuation was at 31 December 2010

In respect of the Nu-Swift International and Ansul schemes {the “schemes"), the valuations used for IAS 19n order

to assess the habiliies of the schemes are based on actuanal valuations at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2010
respectively The results of these valuations have been projected to 31 December 2011 and then recalculated using the
assumptions set out overleaf which result in a net liability posibon of £442,000 (2010 £434,000) The schemes’ assets
are stated at their market value at 31 December 2011

Expected contrnbutans to retirament benefit obligations for the year ending 31 December 2012 are £691,000

The financial assumptions used to calculate iabilities of the schemes under |AS 19 are

201 2010 2009
Discount rate 4 50% - 4 70% 4 50% - 5 50% 550% — 5 80%
Inflation rate 2 00% - 3 00% 200%-350% 200% — 3 60%
Salary increase rate 000% -100% 0 00% -1 00% 0 00%
Increases for pensions in payment 290% 3 30% 3 40%
Revaluation of deferred pensions 200% 3 00% 3 60%

Assumptions regarding future martality expenence are set based on advice, published statistics and experntence in each
terntory The average hfe expectancy in years of a pensioner rettnng at age 65 at the Statement of Financial Position date s
as follows

2011 2010
Male 214 204
Female 230 232

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retinng at age 65, 20 years after the Statement of Financial Position
date, 1s as follows

2011 2010
Male 228 213
Female 239 241
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20 Retrrement benefit obligatons continued
The assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return were

Long term Long term
return Value at Percentage retum Value at Percentaga
expected at 31 December of scherne expected at 31 December of scheme
31 December 2011 assats 31 December 2010 assets
201 £ 000 2011 2010 £ 000 2010
Equities 550% 2979 2379% 6 90% 3,151 28 46%
Assets with guaranteed interest with insurer 4 00% 1,311 1047% 4 00% 1,205 1088%
Bonds 345% 7.952 6350% 4 70% 6,663 60 09%
Cash 2 50% 281 2 24% 4 00% 63 057%
12,523 11,072
Present value of the schemes’ habilities (11,973) {11,051)
Surplus/(defict) in the schemes in accordance
with stated assumptions 550 21
Net pension asset not recogrised due ta
uncertainty over future recoverability (1,221) {653)
Deficit in the schemes recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position {671) (632)
Related deferred tax asset 229 188
Net pension deficit (442) (434)

Expected returns on equity reflect long-term real rates of return expenenced in the markets The expected yields
on bonds and assets with guaranteed interest with insurer are based on gross redemption yields as at the Staterment

of Financial Position date
The following disclosures relate to the schemes

Analysts of the amount recognised in the Income Statement

2011 2010
£'000 000
Current service cost 126 300
Interest cost 580 757
Expected return on plan assets (589) (656)
Total operating charge 116 401
Movement in the defined benefit abligation aver the year
AR
Start of the year (11,051) (10,447
Current service cost {125) (300}
Interest cost (580) (757)
Actuarial loss (689) (297)
Exchange movement a7 54
Benefits paid 435 696
End of the year {(11,973) (11,051)
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20 Rettrement benefit obligations continued
Movement in the farr value of the plan assets over the year

2011 2070
£000 £000
Start of the year 11,072 9,842
Expected return on plan assets 589 656
Actuanal gain 621 448
Employer contnibutions 702 864
Benefits paid (435) (696)
Exchange movements (26) (42)
End of the year 12,523 11,072
The history of the plan
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£ 000 £ 000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Present value of plan habiliies (11,973) (11,051 (10,447} (9,879) (8,582) (15,397)
Farr value of plan assets 12,523 11,072 9,842 9,137 8,633 11,264
Net pension asset not recognised due to uncertainty
over future recoverability (1,221) {653) — — — —
Retrrement benefit obhgation (671) {6832) (605) (742) {949) {4,133}
Expenence (loss)/gain on defined benefit obligation (689) (297) (591) 207 2,384 309
Percentage of plan habikhes 572% (269%) (566%) 210% 2488% 201%
Expernience gain/{loss) on plan assets 621 448 194 (915) 911) (257)
Percentage of plan assets 4 94% 4 05% 197% (100%) (951%) (228%)
Net actuanal gain/{loss) recognised m the year (68} 151 (397} (708) 1,473 52
Analysis of the amount recogrised in the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income son1 2010
£ 000 £000
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets {68) 151
Actuanal (loss)/gamn recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income {68) 151

The contnbutions paid by the Group to the defined contribution stakeholder pension schemes in operation within the
UK amounted to £185,000 in the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010 £162,000)

Total pension costs charged to the Income Statement for all schemes in which the Group participates amounted to
£1,104,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 {2010 £1,262,000) and was wholly recognised in administrative expenses

21 Prowisions for hatihties and charges

Current
Onerous Rectiication
lgags provisian Total
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2011 — 9 9
Amount provided/{utiised) in the year 105 {5} 100
Provision at 31 December 2011 105 4 109

The onerous lease provision relates to a property for which the Group 1s actively seeking a tenant The provision represents
one year's rent and associated costs The rectification provision relates to after sales costs Both prowisions are expected
to be fully utihsed within the next year
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 201 1

22 Calted up share capital

2011 2011 2010 2010
Number £ 000 Number £ 000
Authorsed
Ordinary shares of 1p each 67,539,188 675 67,539,188 675
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p each 12,261,761 123 12,270,948 123

Duning the penod under review a total of 39,187 ordinary shares were purchased for cancellation for a totat consideration
of £573,974

There are no outstanding options at 31 Deacember 2011 following the exercise by X Mignolet of his options

At At Exercisa Dates

1 January Exerused 31 December pce nomally

Data granted 201 nthe year 2011 £ axaraisable
14/01/03 30,000 30,000 Nl 1150 14/01/06 - 14/01/13

The mid-market price of the Company’s shares at 31 December 2011 was £18 25 and the range during the year was £9 75
to £18 25

Share premium account

€000
Al 1 January 2011 —
Issue of shares 344
At 31 December 2011 344

The share premium has ansen followng the exercise on 9 June by X Mignolet, Operations Director, of 30,000 ordinary shares of 1
pence each in the Company at a price of £11 50 each under the Company’s Infand Revenue unapproved share aptons scheme
Subsequently X Mignalet also sold these 30,000 ordinary shares to the Company at the prevailing market value of £14 60 per
share Fallowing this disposal X Mignolet does not have a beneficial interest in the Company The total share-based payment
charged to the Consolidated Income Statement for the penod relating to Directors’ share options was £35,000

Capital redemption reserve

£000

At 1 January 2011 —
Purchase of own shares 1
At 31 December 2011 1
The capital redemption reserve has ansen following the purchase of own shares in the year
23 Reconcthation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

£a0 £000
Operating profit 20,758 19,328
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,416 1,181
Loss on disposal of intangble assets — 4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,375 2,170
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (76) (39)
Exchange differences (132) (602)
Qifference between pension charge and cash contnibutions (588) (624)
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other recevables {1,543) 840
increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,192 (597)
Increasef(decrease) In provisions 100 9)
{Increase)/decrease In inventornes (615) 193
Cash generated fram operations 22,887 21,845
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23 Reconcilaton of aperating profit to cash generated from operations continued
Disposal of assets

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Net book value 224 224
Loss on disposal of intangible assets — {4)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 76 39
Proceeds 300 259
24 Reconciliation of movement in net debt
1 Januaﬁ Cash Non-cash 31 Decernbg
2011 flow itams 2011
£000 000 £000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 22,286 1,091 (334) 23,043
Debt due within one year {(7.126) 7126 {7.030) (7.030)
Debt due after one year (26,730) 126 7,275  (19,329)
Total (+1,570) 8,343 (89) (3,316)
Reconciation of decrease in cash to movement in net debt
Increase In cash 1,01 3,405
Decrease n debt 7,252 8,337
Change in net debt from cash flows 8,343 11,742
Non-cash changes (89) B8t1
Net debt at 1 January {11,670)  {24.123)
Net debt at 31 December {3.3168) (11,570)

Non-cash changes relate to foreign exchange movements and the movement between current and non-current debt in the year

25 Commitments and contingent habilities
The Group leases vanous properties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The lease agreements are between
one and six years and the majornity of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease penod at market rates

The lease expenditure charged to the Income Statement dunng the year is disclosed in note 7

The future aggregate mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Within one year 1,112 942
Between two and five years inclusive 1,756 1,562
More than five years — 81

2,868 2,585

The Group had no contingent habilties, no other financial commitments and no capital commitments at 31 December 2011
(2010 E€NIl)
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2011

26 Acquisitions

On 4 January 2011 the Group purchased the entire 1ssued share capital of Ulysses Fire Serices Limited, a company
incorporated in and which operates it England for consideration of £115,000 On 18 February 2011 the Group purchased

the entire issued share capital of Le Chimiste Sprl, 2 company incorporated in and which operates in Belgium for
consideration of £575,000 On 24 March 2011 the Group purchased the entre 1ssued share capital of Blesberger GmbH ,

a company incorporated in and which operates in Austna, for consideration of £258,000 On 15 July 2011 the Group
purchased the entire 1ssued share capital of Braco B VB A , a company incorporated in and which operates in Belgium, for
consideration of £442,000 None of the acquisitions in the current year were indvidually matenal in Group terms and hence
the details are provided in aggregate The book and provisional farr value of the net assets acquired were as follows

Book and

provistonal

faur values

£ 060

Property, plant and equipment 31
Inventones 103
Recewables 184
Payables (298)
Farr value of net assets acquired 20
Intangible assets (see note 12) 1,370
Consideration 1,390

Satisfied by

Prowisional

consideraton

£ 000

Cash 1,222
Deferred constderation 168
1,390

In addition, the Group acquired contracts from a number of companies and businesses for a total consideration of
£1,388,000 The Drectors considered that the consideration equated to the fair value of the contracts acquired and have
recognised an intangible asset accordingly The Group monitors contract retention rates for any indication of impairment

Due to the integration of the companies and businesses acquired during the year into the existing businesses and
aperations, the Directors are unable to determine the contribution of the acquisitions to the revenue and net profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 nor are they able to determine what the impact on revenues and profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 would have been had the acquisitions taken place on 1 January 2011
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27 Group undertakings

The subsiciary undertakings of the Parent Company, in which the Group wholly owns the entire issued and voting ordinary

share capital, are as follows

Actmty

Country of
registraton or
INCOPORton
and operation

All-Protec N V
Ansul BV
Ansul S A

ASCO Extinguishers Company Limited

BracoBVB A

Blesberger GmbH

Dimex Technics S A

Fire Protection Holdings Limited
GFA Premier Limited

Hoyles Fire & Safety Limited
Hoyles Limuted

Importex S A

Le Chirniste Sprl

L W Safety Limited

M K Fire bimited

Nu-Swift (Engineenng) Limited
Nu-Swift Brandbevetliging B V
Nu-Swift International Limited
Nu-Swaft Limited

SAS Sprl

Somat FIENV

Total FirestopGmbH

TVF {UK) Limited

Ulysses Fire Services Limited
United Fire Alarms Limited

Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire pratection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Sub-holding
Fire protection
Fire protection
Sub-holding
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protechon
Fire protechion
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Sub-holding
Fire protection
Fire Protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Fire protection
Alarms

Belgium
Hotland
Belgum
Scofland and England
Belgium
Austria
Belgum
England
England
England
England
Belgium
Belgium
England
England
England
Holland
England
England
Belgum
Belgium
Austnia
England
England
England

With the exception of the Parent Company’s 160% imterest in Fire Protection Holdings Limited, M K Fire Limited and TVF
{UK) Limited, the shares in the remaining Group undenakings are held by subsidiary undertakings

All of these entibies have been included within the consolidation
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2011

28 Ulimate parent undertaking and controling party

The Parent Company regards EOI Fire SARL, a company registered in Luxembourg, as its ulimate parent undertaking
through its 80% interest in London Security plc The Directors regard the Eden and Anane Trustee companies as the
uitimate controlling parties through ther cantrolling interest in EOI Fire SARL and Tnstar Fire Corp

29 Related party transactions
Dunng the year the Group incuired costs amounting to £2,045,000 (2010 £1,853,000) inrespect of the Executive Directors
including the Head Office and other expenses under the Services Agreement referred to in the Directors’ Remuneraton Report

The Group recharged and was rembursed £210,000 {2010 £210,000) in relation to the Servce Agreement by Andrews Sykes

The balance disclosed m note 15 as being due from related undertakings 1s with EFS Property Holdings Ltd | a company
controlled by J G Murray The amount outstanding at the year end relates entrely to transactions in the year

The Group made sales to fire companies in Switzerland controlied by J G Murray in the year of £297,000 (2010 £271,000)

The Group incurred £154,000 (2010 £122,000) of expenditure on behalf of J G Murray dunng the year This will be
rembursed in 2012

30 Post balance sheet events

In January 2012, one of the Group's subsidianies entered into an unconditional agreement to sell part of its ste The sale
realised £7 0 milion and the profit on the sale was £6 0 million Subsequent to that event another subsidiary of the Group
has entered into a commitment with a developer to butld a new faciity at a cost of £3 0 million on tand that it owns
Additional costs of £0 3 milhon are forecast to bring the facility into operation

Subsequent to the year end the Group has completed the acquisition of further service contracts for a total of £575,000
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Parent company balance sheet
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £000
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 2 510 561
Investments 3 58,756 58,756
59,266 59,317

Current assets
Debtors 4 6,175 5,687
Cash at bank and in hand 1,237 2,230

7.412 7,917

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Finance debt 5 (1,500) {1,500)
Creditors 6 (13,755) (11,886)
{(15,255) (13,386)
Net current habilities (7,843) (5.469)
Total assets less current habilties 51,423 53,848
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Finarnce debt 5 (3,232) (4,732)
Net assets 48,191 49116

Caprtal and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Capital redemption reserve fund 1 —
Profit and loss account 47,723 48,993
Equity shareholders’ funds 10 48,191 49,116
The registered numbser of the Company 15 53417

123 123
344 —

[l 0+~ B - T s ]

The notes on pages 44 to 48 are an integral part of thess financial statements

The financial statements on pages 43 to 48 were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 May 2012 and were signed on
its behalf by

J G Murray

Chairrman
2 May 2012 QS RQR‘QV""(
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Notes to the parent company financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1 Principal acccunting policies

Basis of accounting

These Parent Company financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, under the histoncal cost
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards in the UK The Directors
have prepared these financial statements on the fundamental assumption that the Company 1s a going cencern and will
continue to trade for at least 12 months following the date of approval of the financial statements In determining whether
the Company's accounts should be prepared on a going concern basis the Directors have considered the factors hkely

to affect the future performance The Directors have reviewed trading and cash flow forecasts as part of the going concern
assessment and based on this have the expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future

A summary of the more important accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, 1s set out below

Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets 1s therr purchase cost or internal production costs, together with any incidental costs
of acquisition

Depreciation 1s prowvided for on all tangible fixed assets an the straight ine method at rates calculated to wnte off the cost
or valuation less estimated residual values aver the estimated hives of the assets The annual rates are as follows

Share in arcraft 5%

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable Any mpairrment in value 1s charged to the profit and loss account

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings and unlisted investments are included at cost unless, in the opinton of the
Directors, an imparment has oceourred, in which case the deficiency 1s pronded for and charged in the Parent Company's
profit and logs account

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all tming differences that have ongmated but not reversed at the Statement
of Financial Pestion date, where transactions or events that resuli in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght
to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the Statement of Financial Posiion date

A net deterred tax asset I1s recognised as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, It can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits against which to recover
carned forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the perneds in which the timing differences
are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement
of Financial Posttion date Deferred tax s measured on an undiscounted basis

Finance arrangement costs and interest rate caps
Costs of arranging bank loans and interest rate caps are treated as a deduction from the loan hability and are amortised
over the lives of the relevant loans

Cash flow statement

The cash flows of the Parent Company are included n the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow of Landon Secunty plc
Consequently, the Parent Company i1s exempt under the terms of FRS 1 {revised) “Cash flow statements” from publishing
a cash flow statement

Dmdend distnibution

Dnadend distnbution ta the Parent Company's shareholders is recognised as a habiity in the Group's financial statements
when paid in the case of intenm dividends or in the penod in which the dividends are approved by the Parent Company's
shareholders in the case of final dvidends
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2 Tangible assets

Share in
arcraft
£000
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 2011 1,019
Depreciation
At 1 January 2011 458
Charge for the year 51
At 31 December 2011 509
Net baok amount
At 31 December 2011 510
At 31 December 2010 561
3 Investments
Shares in
subsichary
undertakings
£000
Cost
At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 58,756
The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments 18 supported by therr underlying net assets
4 Debtors
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 5,207 4,619
Amounts owed by related undertakings 222 204
Other debtors 154 122
Taxation recoverable 592 742
6,175 5,687

Amounts owed by subs:diary and related undertakings are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed date of repayment

and are repayable on demand

5 Finance debt

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Non-current (amounts faling due in more than one year)
Bank horrowings
— In one to two years 3,232 1,500
— between two and five years -— 3,232
3,232 4,732
Current {amounts falling due within one year or on demand)
Bank borrowings 1,500 1,500
Total borrowings 4,732 6,232

Interest rates (including the bank’s margin) on the bank loans in existence dunng the year averaged 1 6% (2010 1 7%) per annum
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2011

5 Finance debt continued

The Directors consider that the fair values of the bank loans are not matenally different from therr book values

The carnying amounts of the Company's borrowings, all of which are floating rate financial labilities, are denominated

In the fallowing currencies

Weighted Weighted
avarage average
Total Interest Total Interest
2011 rete 2010 rate
£00G 2011 £000 2010
Currency
Sterling 4,732 1 6% 6,232 17%

4,732 1 6%

6,232 17%

Borrowing facilities
The Company has undrawn committed borrowing facihties of €1 8 million (2010 £1 8 mullion)

€ Creditors amounts falling due within one year

2011 2010

£'000 £000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 13,295 11,548
Other creditors 131 118
Accruals 329 220

13,755 11,886

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand

7 Deferred tax
The deferred tax asset comprises

Ameunt recognised

Arnount unrecognised

2011 2050
€ 000 £000

201 2010
£ 000 £000

Losses — —

(1,428) (1,599)

Deferred tax asset —_ —

(1,428} (1.599)

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods m which
timing differences will reverse, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position

date being a rate of 25%
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8 Called up share capital

201 2011 2010 2010
Number £'000 Number £000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each 67,539,188 675 67,539,188 675
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p each 12,261,761 123 12,270,948 123

Dunng the penod under review a total of 39,187 ordinary shares were purchased for cancellation for a total consideration

of £573,974
There are no outstanding options at 31 December 2011 following the exercise by X Mignolet of his options
At At Exercise Dates
1 January Exercised 31 December price normally
Date granted 2011 in the year 2011 £ exar¢isable
14/01/03 30,000 30,000 Nil 1150 14/01/06 — 14/01/13
The mid-market price of the Company's shares at 31 December 2011 was £18 25 and the range dunng the year was
£975t0£1825
Share premtum account
£000
At 1 January 2011 —
Issue of shares 344
At 31 December 2011 344
The creation of the share prermum account 1s set out in note 22 to the Group financial statements
Captital redemption reserve
£000
At 1 January 2011 —
Purchase of own shares 1
At 31 December 2011 1
The capital redemption reserve has ansen followng the purchase of own shares in the year
9 Profit and loss account
£000
At 1 January 2011 48,993
Loss for the inancial year (1,270)
At 31 December 2011 47,723

London Secunty plc has not presented its own profit and loss account as the Directors have taken advantage of the
exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The loss for the financial year of the Parent Company
included wathin the consolidated loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders 1s £1,270,000 (2010 profit £51,251,000)

The Parent Company had no employees during the year (2010 Nil)

The remuneration paid to the Parent Company auditor in respect of the audit of Group and Parent Company financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 s set out in note 7 ta the Group financial statements
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2011

10 Reconcihiation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Profit for the financial year 2,157 53,077
Dividends paid (2,944) {2,086}
Net exchange gamn on foreign currency loans — 466
Issue of shares 344 —
Purchase of own shares (482) (206}
Net (reducthon)/increase in equity shareholders' funds (925) 51,251
Opening equity shareholders' funds/(deficit) 49,116 {2,135)
Closing equity shareholders' funds 48,191 49,116

11 Commitments and contingent habilihes
The Parent Company had no financial or other commitments at 31 December 2011 (2010 £Nil)

The Parent Company was party to a cross guarantee under which it guaranteed the borrowings of certain of its subsidiary
undertakings At 31 December 2011 this guarantee amounted to £21,628,000 (2010 £27,624,000) No loss 1s expected to
anse from this guarantee

12 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The Parent Company regards EOIl Fire SARL, a company registered in Luxembourg, as its ulumate parent undertaking
through its 80% interast in London Secunty plc The Directors regard the Eden and Anane Trustee companies as the
ultimate controlling parties through thewr controliing interest in EOI Fire SARL and Tnstar Fire Corp

13 Related party transactrons

Durning the year the Company incutred costs amounting to £971,000 (2010 £783,000) in respect of the Executive
Directors, including the Head Office and other expenses under the Services Agreement referred to in the Directors’
Remuneration Report The balances disclosed in note 4 as being due from related undertakings are with companies
controlled by J G Murray

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 8 “Related party disclosures™ from disclosing
transactions between related parties within the London Secunty plc group of companigs

The Company incurred £154,000 {2010 £122,000) of expenditure on behalf of J G Murray dunng the year This will be
rembursed n 2012
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Notice of annual general meeting

NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT the Annual Generat Meeting of Landon Secunty plc (the “Company™) will be held at 10 Bruton Street,
5th Floor, London WtJ 6PX on 13 June 2012 at 11 am for the following purposes

You will be asked to consider the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions

1 Torecewve the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the Reports of the Directors and auditor
and the Directors’ Remuneration Report for that period

To re-elect 4 G Murray as a Director, who retires by rotation under arhcle 23 2 of the Company's articles of association
To re-elect J-P Murray as a Director, who retires by rotahion under article 23 2 of the Company’s articles of associabion

To re-elect E Sebag as a Dwector, who retires by rotation under article 23 2 of the Company's articles of association

(& T - ¢ T (V]

That KPMG Audit Pic be re-appomnted as auditor of the Company to hold cffice untif the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company and that their remuneration be fixed by the Directors

€ That the Directars be generally and unconditionally authcnsed in accordance with Section 549 of the Companies Act
2006 (the "Act”) to exercise all the powers of the Company to aflot relevant secunties (as defined in Section 550 of the
Act} up to an aggregate nominal value equal to the whole of the authonsed but unissued share capital of the Company
immediately following the passing of this resolution prowded that such authonty shatl (unless and to the extent previously
revoked, varied or renewed by the Company in general meeting) expire at the conclusion of five years from the date
this resolution 1s passed provided that such authonty shall allow the Company to make an offer or enter into an
agreement which would or might require relevant securnities to be allotted after the expiry of such authority and the
Directors may allot relevant secunties i pursuance of any such offer or agreement as If the authonty conferred by this
resolution has not expired

You will be asked to consider the following resolutions as special resolubions

7 That, subject o the passing of resolution numbered 6 above, the Directors be and are empowered pursuant to Seclion
570 of the Act to allot equity secunties {within the meaning of Section 564 of the Act) of the Company for cash pursuant
to the authonty conferred by the resolution numbered 6 above as If Section 561 of the Act did not apply to such allotment,
provided that this power shall be lmited to

() the allotment of equity secunties in connection with or pursuant to an offer by way of nghts to the holders of
ordinary shares and other persons entifed to participate in such offer in proportion (as nearly as may be) to their
respective holdings of ardinary shares, subject only to such exclustons or other arrangements as the Directors
may consider necessary or expedient to dea! with fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems under
the laws of any territory or the regulations or requirements of any regulatory body or any stock exchange in any
terntory, and

(n} the allotment (other than pursuant to (1) above} of equity secunties up to an aggregate nominal amount of £6,130
and such power shall expire an the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or 15 months after
the date of the passing of this resolution {whichever 1s the earlier) but so that the Company may before such
expiry make an offer or agreement which would ar might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry
and the Directors may allot equity secunties pursuant to such an offer or agreement as if the power conferred by
this resolutton had not expired
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\ 5 London Security plc

Notice of annual general meeting continued

8 That the Company be and 1s generally and unconditionally authonsed for the purposes of Section 701 of the Act
to make one or more market purchases (as defined in Section 701 (2) of the Act) on the London Stock Exchange
of ordinary shares of 1 pence each in the capital of the Company (“ordinary shares”) prownided that

(0 the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares authonsed to be purchased i1s 500,000 shares,
()  the minimum price which may be pad for such shares 1s 1 pence per share,

(m) the maxmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for such shares i1s not more than 5% above
the average of the middie market quotations for the Company's ordinary shares denved from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Cfficial List for the five business days immedsately preceding the day on which the purchase
of the ordinary shares is contracted 10 take place,

(v} the authonty conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or
15 months after the passing of this resolution (whichever 1s the earlier), and

{v) the Company may make a contract to purchase its own shares under the authonty conferred prior to the expiry
of such authonty which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authonty and may make
a purchase of its own shares in pursuance of any such contract

By order of the Board

R Pollard Registered office
Secretary Wistons Lane
2 May 2012 Elland
West Yorkshire
HX5 9DT

Notes

1 If you are a member of the Company you are entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote at the
Meeting and you shoutd have receved a form of proxy with the Notice of Mesting You can appoint a proxy using the
procedures set out in these notes and the notes in the form of proxy

2 A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must attend the Meeting to represant you Details of how
to appoint the Charman of the Meeting or another person as your proxy using the form of proxy are set out in the notes
to the form of proxy

3 You may appomnt more than ane proxy provided each proxy 1s appointed to exercise nghts attached to different shares
You may not appeint mare than cne proxy to exercise nghts attached to any one share To appoint more than one
proxy, fill out a copy of the accompanying form of proxy for each proxy Multiple proxy appointments should be
returned n the same envelope

4 Avote withheld 1s not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or
agamnst the resolution If no voting indication 1s given, your proxy will vote or abstam from voting at his or her discretion
Your proxy will vote {or abstain from voting) as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which 1s put before
the Meeting
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Notes continued

Appointment of proxy using hard copy proxy form

5 The notes to the form of proxy explain how to direct your proxy, how to vote on each resolution or withhold their vote
To appont a proxy using the form of proxy, the form must be

(a) completed and signed,

(b} sent or delvered to Capita Registrars, Proxy Department, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent BR3 4TU, and

(c) receved by Capita Registrars no later than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting

In the case of a member which 1s a company, the form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or signed on its
behalf by an officer of the Company or an attomey for the Company Any power of attorney or any other authonty under which
the torm of proxy is signed (or a duly cerified copy) of such power or authonty must be ncluded with the form of proxy

Appointment of proxy by joint members
6 Inthe case of appointment of a proxy by jont shareholders, the signature of any one of them will suffice, but if a holder
ather than the first-named holder signs, it will help the registrars if the name of the first-named hclder 1s given

Changing proxy instructions

7 To change your proxy instruchions, simply submit a new proxy appointment using the methods set out above Note that
the cut-off time for receipt of praxy appointments (see above)} also apphes in relation to amended instructions, any amended
proxy appointment received after the retevant cut-off time will be disregarded

If you submit more than one vald proxy appointment, the appomntment recerved last before the latest time for the
receipt of proxies will take precedence

Termination of proxy appointments

8 In order to revoke a proxy instruction you will need to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy nohce
clearly stating your intention to revake your proxy appointment to Capita Registrars, Proxy Department, The Registry,
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU In the case of a member which 1s a company, the revocation notice
must be executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of the Company or an attorney for the
Company Any power of attorney or any other authority under which the revocation notice 1s signed {or a duly certified
copy of such power or authonty) must be included with the revocation notice

The revocation notice must be recaived by Capita Registrars no later than 48 hours before the Meeting

If you attempt to revoke your proxy appomtment but the revocation i1s recerved afier the time specified then, subject to
the paragraph directly below, your proxy appointment will rernam vakd

Appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending the Meeting and voting in person If you have appointed
a proxy and attend the Meeting in person, your proxy appointment will automatically be terminated

Issued shares and total voting nghts

9 Asat 11 am on 2 May 2012, the Company's 1ssued share capital compnsed 12,261,477 ordinary shares of 1 pence
each Each ordinary share carnes the nght to one vote at a General Mseting of the Company and, therefore, the total
number of voting nghts in the Company as at 11 am on 2 May 201215 12,261,477

Documents on display
10 The register of Directors’ interests will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company from 2 May 2012
untl the time of the Meeting and for at least 15 minutes prior to the Meeting and during the Meeting

Commurication
11 Except as provided above, members who have general quenes about the Meeting should use the following method
of communication {no other methods of communication will be accepted)

(a) calling 01422 372852,
(b} you may not use any electrornic address prowided erther
{1 n this notice of Annual General Meeting, or

(w) any refated documents (including the form of proxy), to communicate wath the Company
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Group companies

United Kingdom

Asco Extinguishers Company Limited
Uit 11

Festival Court

Brand Place

Glasgow G51 1DR

Tel 0141 427 1144

Fax 0141 427 6644

Email customer service@asco Uk com
Website www asco uk com

GFA Premier Limited

Wistons Lane

Elland

West Yorkshire HX5 aDT

Tel 01422 377 521

Fax 01422 377 524

Emast  customer service@gfapremierco uk
Hoyles Fire & Safety Limited

Wistons Lane

Elland

West Yorkshire HXS QDT

Tel 01422 314 351

Fax 01422 314 311

Email customer service@hoyles co uk

Website www hoyles co uk

L w Safety Limited

56/69 Queens Road

High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire HP13 6AH

Tel 01422 314 350

Fax 01422 314 311

Email customer service@lwsafety co uk
Wehsite www lwsafety co uk

M K Fire Limited

56/89 Queens Road

High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire HP13 6AH

Tel 01494 760 744

Fax 01494 465 378

Email customer service@mkfire co uk
Websgite www mkfire co uk

Nu-Swaft International Limited
Wistons Lane

Elland
West Yorkshire HXS aDT
Tel 01422 372 852

Fax 01422 379 569
Email customer service@nuswiit co uk
Website www nu-swift co uk

TVF (UK) bmited

56/69 Queens Road

High Wycembe
Buckinghamshire HP13 6AH

Tel 01454 450 641

Fax 01494 465 378

Email customer servica@tviitd co uk
Website www tviitd co uk

Urited Fire Alarms bimited
Wistons Lane

Elland

West Yorkshire HX5 DT

Tel (0845 601 5836

Fax 0845 601 5837

Email customer service@utdéa co uk
Website www unitedfirealarm com

Belgium
All-Protec N V
Bogaertstraat 16
9910 Knesslare

Tel 00 32 9375 2044
Fax 00 32 9374 6895
Emat  info@all-protec be

Ansul S A
Industnalaan 35
B-1702 Groot-Bijgaarden

Tel 00 32 2467 7211
Fax 00 32 2466 4456
Emasl mail@ansuy he

Website www ansul be

Dimex Technics S A
42 Rue de I'Eglise
4710 Lontzen Herbesthal

Tel 00 32 8788 0242

Fax 00 32 8788 3766

Email info@dimex-technics be
Importex S A

42 Rue de I'Eghse

4710 Lontzen Herbesthal

Tel 00 32 8788 0242

Fax 00 32 8788 3766
Email info@mportex be

SAS Sprl
42 Rue de I'Eghse
4710 Lontzen Herbesthal

Tet 00 32 8788 0242
Fax 00 32 8788 3766
Email info@dmex-technics be
Website www sas-company com

Somat FIEN V
Industnelaan 19a
9320 Erembodegem

Tel 00 32 5385 2222
Fax 00 32 5385 2221
Emairl info@somat be
Website www somat be

Le Chimiste Sprl
Avenue Marcator 1
1300 Wavre

Tel 00 32010 22 56 22
Website www bs-security be

BracoBVB A
Affigemdreef12
9300 Aalst

Tel 00 32 5321 4570
Fax 00 32 5377 6383
Email info@bracofireprotection be

Netherlands

Ansul BV

Platinastraat 15 NL 8211
AR Lelystad

Tel 00 31 320 240864
Fax 00 31 320 247707
Email info@ansul nl
Website www ansul nl

Nu-Swiit Brandbevelliging BV
Ringoven 45
6826 TP Arnhem

Tel 00 31 263 630330
Fax 00 31 263 640828
Emait Info@nu-swift ni
Website  www nu-gwaft nl

NL Brandhevelligng B V
Gaasbeekstraat 6
5628 WC Eindhoven

Tel 00 40 248 2196
Emal  info@nibrandbeveiiging nl
Website www nu-swaft nl

Austria
Total Firestop Gm b H
Tillmanngasse 5

1220 Wien

Tel 00 431 259 36310
Fax 00 431 259 363118
Emai nfo@total at

Website wwwiotal at

Blesberger GmbH
Harruckerstrasse 9
A-4040 Linz

Tel 00 43732 733234
Website www blesberger at
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